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I. RECOMMENDATION 
An investigation was conducted into whether from 1988 

through 1993 Vincent Trerotola breached his fiduciary duties and 
embezzled and converted to his use money he caused Locals 72 and 
858 to pay him beyond his salary without disclosure to the members 
and approval of the Locals' boards. Because of the evidence 
summarized below, the Independent Review Board recommends a charge 
be filed for this conduct. In addition, also investigated was 
whether Trerotola embezzled from several IBT entities, including 
the locals, money received from each of the entities for 
reimbursement to him of his payment through withholding from his 
salary of his employee's share of the FICA tax paid on his salaries 
from these entities, at a time when he knew the IBT paid his full 
FICA obligations in those years. It was determined that Trerotola 
did not disclose to any of these entities that the IBT fully paid 
his FICA obligations. Thus, he accepted multiple payments for the 
same expense. For 1988, 1989 and 1990, Joint Council 16, the 
Eastern Conference, and Locals 72 and 858 each reimbursed Trerotola 
for his employee's share of the FICA tax even though the IBT had 
paid his FICA obligations. Moreover, in 1991 and 1993 Trerotola 
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may have also embezzled and converted to his own use FICA and 
Medicare reimbursements he caused Local 858 to pay to himself 
because Local 72, Joint Council 16 and the Eastern Conference also 
reimbursed Trerotola for his FICA obligations in those years. In 
1992, Trerotola appears to have embezzled funds from the Eastern 
Conference because he failed to disclose to that entity that Local 
72 was reimbursing him for his FICA obligations. As a result, in 
every year since 1988 Trerotola received reimbursement from IBT 
entities for his FICA obligation in excess of the amounts necessary 
to satisfy the obligation. 

Because the allegations involve intertwined wrongdoing at 
the Local, Joint Council and Conference levels, the filing of 
charges is being recommended to the General President. 

II. INTRODUCTION 
From 1972 until August 1990, when former General 

President William McCarthy fired him, Trerotola was a salaried 
International Representative. (Ex. 1 at 10) During this period, 
the International paid his and every other International employee's 
share of the FICA tax. Trerotola was also the salaried 
Administrative Assistant to the Chairman of the Eastern Conference 
from 1971 until December 1993 when he resigned. (Ex. 2 at 24) In 
addition, he was also the salaried Office Manager for Joint Council 
16 in New York from 1969 until late Spring 1993 when he was fired.1 

1 His father, Joseph Trerotola, was head of the Eastern 
Conference from 1969 to October 1990 and head of Joint Council 16 
from 1966 until 1991 when he resigned as part of a settlement of 
the Investigations Officer's charges against him. (Ex. 5 at 6, 11) 
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Both the Eastern Conference and Joint Council 16 reimbursed 
Trerotola for his employee FICA payments withheld and forwarded to 
the government on his behalf despite the International having fully 
satisfied Trerotola's obligation for that tax. The excess withheld 
FICA was available to him for a dollar per dollar set-off against 
his income tax liabilities. In essence, the government returned 
this money to him. There was no expense to reimburse. 

While holding the International, Eastern Conference and 
Joint Council 16 positions, Trerotola simultaneously was the 
Secretary-Treasurer of Local 72. He has headed that Local from its 
inception in 1979 to the present. (Ex. 1 at 4) From approximately 
1981 to the present, Trerotola also has been the Local 858 
Secretary-Treasurer. (Ex. 1 at 19) Trerotola received a salary 
from each Local. During the years 1988 through 1990, Trerotola 
awarded himself from each Local .annual reimbursement of his 
employee's share of FICA.2 During the years 1991 through 1993, 
Trerotola received a check from each Local for the amount of his 
employee's share of FICA with the notation "bonus" or "gratuity" on 
the check.3 These payments, whether considered FICA reimbursements 
or bonuses, were made without disclosure to the members or approval 
by the boards.4 

2 The other members of both Local's Executive Boards also 
received reimbursement for the FICA withheld from their salaries. 

3 It appears that in 1992 Local 858 did not issue FICA 
reimbursement or bonus checks to any Local 858 officer, including 
Trerotola. 

4 As discussed below, in 1991, 1992 and 1993, the Local 72 
Executive Board discussed Christmas bonuses. 
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Based upon investigation, it appears that Trerotola may 
have embezzled monies from Locals 72 and 858 in 1988, 1989 and 1990 
for two reasons: First, knowing that the IBT fully paid the 
employee's share of FICA taxes on his behalf, he had the Locals 
reimburse him for an obligation, his employee's share of FICA, that 
another IBT entity, the International, had fully paid and which 
excess withholding was available to him as dollar per dollar set-
off against his tax liability.5 Second, as discussed below, even 
if these payments were considered to be bonuses and not FICA 
reimbursement, the evidence shows that Trerotola brought reproach 
upon the IBT and embezzled Local money by engaging in undisclosed 
and, in the absence of bylaws and a board vote, unapproved self-
enrichment at the expense of the members to whom he owed a 
fiduciary duty. In Local 858 this reason also existed in later 
years.6 Trerotola's conduct in Local 858 was particularly 
egregious because in 1987 the Executive Board and the members voted 
that his salary should be equivalent to that of an. OTB General 
Branch Manager. Nevertheless, each year Trerotola awarded himself 
additional compensation above his salary without disclosure to the 
members or approval by the Executive Board. 

For the other two entities, the Joint Council and the 
Eastern Conference, it appears Trerotola embezzled funds through 

5 In addition, as noted above, for those same years, while 
he knew that the IBT fully paid his employee's share of FICA taxes, 
Trerotola also received FICA reimbursement from Joint Council 16 
and the Eastern Conference. 

6 As discussed below, in 1991, 1992 and 1993 the Local 72 
Executive Board discussed the distribution of Christmas bonuses, 
and, in 1992 Local 72 Bylaws were approved by the IBT General 
President. 
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double dipping because the money withheld for his FICA obligation 
for which he was being reimbursed by both of these entities was his 
already, available as a personal tax credit, because the obligation 
had been paid by some other IBT entity in the applicable years. As 
a consequence, it appears that from 1988 through 1993 Trerotola 
breached his fiduciary duties to IBT members, brought reproach upon 
the IBT and embezzled and converted to his own use union funds 
thereby violating Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 
7(b)(1), (2) and (3) of the IBT Constitution. 

Trerotola7s defense to the double dipping allegation is 
that the year-end payments from all the entities were bonuses and 
not FICA reimbursement. He claims that FICA withholding was used 
to measure the bonuses. As to the charge of causing the locals to 
make unauthorized and undisclosed payments to himself, Trerotola's 
defense appears to be he lacked the intent to embezzle and that, 
since they were also receiving bonuses, the other board members 
implicitly approved it. 

III. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 
A. TREROTOLA'S FICA AND MEDICARE OBLIGATIONS 

FICA is a federal tax imposed on individuals and their 
employers. For the years 1988, 1989 and 1990, the maximum FICA and 
Medicare tax paid by an employee was $3,379.50, $3,604.80 and 
$3,924.45 respectively. For those years, the FICA and Medicare 
maximum was reached when an individual earned an annual salary of 
$45,000, $48,000 and $51,300 respectively. There was no FICA or 
Medicare tax imposed upon salaries above those points for those 
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years. (Ex. 3) It was the IBT's policy during the years in 
question to pay the FICA taxes in full for all IBT employees. (Ex. 
130) 

For the years 1991, 1992 and 1993, the maximum FICA tax 
paid by an employee was $3,310.80, $3,441.00 and $3,571.20 
respectively. For those years, the FICA maximum was reached when 
an individual earned an annual salary of $53,400, $55,500 and 
$57,600 respectively. There was no FICA tax imposed upon salaries 
above those points for those years. (Ex. 4) 

In 1991, the government changed the formula used to 
calculate Medicare tax. For the years 1991, 1992 and 1993, the 
maximum Medicare tax paid by an employee required by law was 
$1,812.50, $1,887.90 and $1,957.50 respectively. This Medicare 
maximum was reached when an individual earned an annual salary of 
$125,000, $130,200 and $135,000 respectively. There was no 
Medicare imposed upon salaries above those points for those years. 
(Ex. 4) 

In the years 1988, 1989 and until August in 1990, 
Trerotola worked for the IBT as an International Representative. 
His International salary for these years was $67,776.77, $69,512.59 
and $48,346.60, respectively. (Exs. 93, 94 and 95) In each of 
these years, the IBT, as was its practice for all employees, paid 
Trerotola's FICA obligations in addition to his salary and other 
allowances. The IBT had paid his FICA obligations in this manner 
since 1972, when he was first employed as an International 
Representative. (Ex. 1 at 10) Trerotola admitted that he knew the 
IBT paid both the employer's share of the FICA and his share of the 
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FICA. (Ex. 1 at 24-25) As discussed below, he never disclosed this 
payment to any of the other IBT entities for which he worked. 

For the years 1988, 1989 and 1990, the IBT paid FICA and 
Medicare obligations on Trerotola's behalf of $3,379.50, $3,604.80 
and $3,419.04, respectively. (Exs. 93, 94 and 95) This was the 
maximum FICA and Medicare obligation due from any individual in the 
years 1988 and 1989. Trerotola was discharged as an International 
Representative in August 1990 and at that point the IBT had not 
paid the maximum FICA and Medicare obligation reguired for that 
year. After the IBT payment, Trerotola would have owed an 
additional $505.41 in FICA and Medicare tax for 1990. 

TAX CREDITS FOR EXCESS FICA PAYMENTS 
The law required that if an employee received salaries 

from multiple entities, FICA and Medicare withholding must have 
been withheld and forwarded to the government as if each entity's 
salary (for Trerotola, five different Teamster salaries) was the 
only salary received. See. 26 U.S.C. §§ 3101, 3102 and 3111. If 
at the end of the tax year the employee had overpaid his FICA and 
Medicare obligations, then he was entitled to a tax credit for the 
excess amount against his income tax owed. Thus, the excess FICA 
withholding would reduce his personal tax liability. 



B. LOCAL 72 
Local 72 has approximately 2,500 to 2,600 members. The 

Local's members are New York State Thruway toll collectors, 
maintenance and clerical workers. (Ex. 1 at 5) Local 72 has only 
one contract, that with the New York State Thruway. The offices of 
this Local are at 265 West 14th Street, Room 704, New York City. 
(Ex. 1 at 16-17). Trerotola has been the Secretary Treasurer of 
Local 72 since 1979.7 During this period, he also always held 
other Teamster positions simultaneously. 

Local 72 had no Bylaws from 1979 until November 1992 when 
the International approved Bylaws. (Ex. 6, Ex. 2 at 34; Ex. 129)8 

Local 72 is a public service local and, as such, does not file Form 
LM-2 reports with the Department of Labor detailing, among other 
things, officers' compensation. The Local 72 membership meeting 
minutes stated that the Local's financial reports were read at 
these meetings. (Exs. 7-12)9 The financial reports, which the 
Local's outside accountants prepared, did not list the salaries 

7 Local 72 paid Trerotola $73,744.10 in 1993, $73,478.00 in 
1992, $70,693.89 in 1991, $63,144.47 in 1990, $64,234.80 in 1989 
and $60,760.04 in 1988. (Exs. 20, 22, 24, 26, 28 and 30) 

8 Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT Constitution mandates 
that each local union must adopt Bylaws which do not conflict with 
the IBT Constitution. 

These minutes also reflected that the Executive Board 
meeting minutes were read at the general membership meetings. 
However, the Executive Board minutes did not contain a statement of 
the salary for Trerotola. The Executive Board minutes for February 
13, 1991 reflected that the Executive Board set the monthly salary 
for Local 72 President Susan Girolamo at $2300 and decided that 
Trerotola, the Local's Secretary Treasurer, would receive a $400 
month salary increase retroactive to July 1990. (Ex. 34(A)) 
However, these minutes, which were read to the membership, did not 
state Trerotola's salary. (Exs. 34(A) and 10 (A-D)) 
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